

BYLAWS OF THE LAKE FOREST FOUNDATION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

ARTICLE I - NAME

The Corporation shall be named the LAKE FOREST FOUNDATION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation").

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

These bylaws constitute the code of rules adopted by the LAKE FOREST FOUNDATION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION for the regulation and management of its affairs. The Corporation will have the purposes or powers as may be stated in its Articles of Incorporation and such powers as are now, or may be granted hereafter, by the General Not-for-Profit Corporation Act of the State of Illinois or any successor legislation.

The primary purpose of the Corporation is to conserve and perpetuate the historic character of Lake Forest; to preserve through acquisition, development and restoration, selected historic sites, structures, and amenities of architectural or historic interest; to increase and diffuse knowledge and greater appreciation of such sites, structures and amenities and to assist through research, planning studies, acquisition of preservation easements, operation of revolving funds, and related methods, the preservation, conservation, and renewal of these cultural resources of Lake Forest.

ARTICLE III - PRINCIPAL OFFICE AND REGISTERED OFFICE

The principal office of the Corporation in Illinois is located at 400 East Illinois Road, or at any other such place as the Board of Directors, from time to time, may designate by resolution.

The registered office of the Corporation shall be located at and be identical with the address of the registered agent of the Corporation. Such office will be continuously maintained within the State of Illinois for the duration of the Corporation. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, change the address of its registered office and agent, by duly adopted resolution and submission of the appropriate statement to the Secretary of State's office.

The registered agent of the Corporation will be the Treasurer, resident in the State of Illinois, or a domestic or foreign corporation, authorized to act as such agent. Such an agent will be continuously maintained by the Corporation in the State of Illinois. A new registered agent may be appointed if the office of such agent becomes vacant for any reason, or such agent becomes disqualified or incapacitated to act, or if the Corporation through the Board of Directors revokes the appointment of such agent by duly adopted resolution. The new appointment will be made by duly adopted resolution of the Board of Directors and submission of the appropriate statement to the Secretary of State's office. Such registered agent will be recognized as an agent of the Corporation on whom any process, notice, or demand required or permitted by law to be served on a corporation may be served.

The Corporation will not recognize the resignation of any registered agent appointed by it unless it receives a copy of such agent's resignation as sent to the Secretary of State, such copy to be sent to the Corporation by registered or certified mail, addressed to the principal office of the corporation as it is known to such agent, and directed to the attention of the Secretary, such copy to be sent within five (5) days after the date of filing of the statement with the Secretary of State; and such statement of resignation will be acceptable

only if it discloses the effective date of resignation to be not less than sixty (60) days nor more than ninety (90) days after the date of such filing.

ARTICLE IV - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 - Membership Qualifications and Classes

Membership in the LAKE FOREST FOUNDATION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION shall be upon application to and acceptance by the Membership Committee of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may provide rules or action for termination of membership for failure to pay dues promptly or for other causes. Membership in the Corporation is non-transferable.

There shall be the following classes of membership:

1. General Membership that shall be available to individuals and households;
2. General Life Membership that shall be available to individuals and households in acknowledgement of a contribution to the Revolving Fund as established in Section 5, Dues of this Article; no further annual dues shall be required;
3. Corporate Membership that shall be available to all other entities not included above and which shall include, by way of example: foundations, businesses, corporations, partnerships, professional organizations and groups.
4. Honorary Life Membership that shall be conveyed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors then voting and which shall be limited to recognition of individuals or organizations for their service to the goals of the Corporation; no dues shall be required.

All classes of membership afford voting right in elections of Officers and Directors and matters brought before the membership by the Board of Directors.

Any individual, group (such as, but not limited to, a household, partnership, or association) or corporation may apply for, be granted membership, and become a member in any of the classes enumerated above. Upon admission, such group shall be represented by one member of the group who is designated by the group and such corporation shall be represented by its president unless it has designated, in writing to the Secretary some other person who shall be its legal representative.

Section 2 - Meetings of the Membership

The annual meeting of the membership will be held within 60 days after the close of the fiscal year on a date and time determined by the Board of Directors. At such meeting, a report shall be presented covering the activities of the foundation during the preceding fiscal year.

Special meetings of the membership may be called by any of the following:

1. Board of Directors
2. President
3. One-third (1/3) of the membership

Written notice stating the place, day, and hour of the meeting and in case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes of which the meeting is called, must be delivered not less than five (5) nor more than forty (40) days before the date of the membership meeting, either personally or by mail, by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, the President, or the members calling the meeting, by the Secretary, to each member entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, the notice will be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the

United States mail addressed to the member at his address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, with postage prepaid.

Section 3 - Quorum

Twenty-five percent (25%) of the membership shall constitute a quorum at a membership meeting. A majority vote of those members present, or represented by proxy, shall be necessary for adoption of any matter voted upon, except for amendments to the bylaws or Articles of Incorporation.

Section 4 - Voting

Each member shall be entitled to one (1) vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the members. A member may vote in person or by proxy executed in writing by the member or by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact. No proxy will be recognized as valid after eleven (11) months from the date of its execution, unless expressly provided otherwise in the proxy,

Section 5 - Dues

Each member shall pay dues according to a schedule as established by a majority vote of the Board of Directors then voting.

Section 6 - Interest

Membership in the Corporation shall not entitle any member to any interest in any property or funds owned or acquired by it that shall vest solely in the Corporation.

Section- 7 - Termination of Membership

Membership will terminate in the Corporation on either of the following events, and for no other reason:

1. Receipt by the Board of Directors of the written resignation of a member, executed by such member or his duly authorized attorney-in-fact
2. On the death of the member
3. On the failure of a member to pay his annual dues on or before their due date or within 30 days thereafter
4. For cause, inconsistent with membership, after appropriate hearing. Appropriate hearing consists of a hearing before the Board of Directors, at which time the member may, if he so chooses, be represented by counsel. The decision of the Board of Directors after all evidence is presented shall be conclusive.

However, a member terminating membership status for reasons other than 2 above may be completely and automatically reinstated if correcting the cause of termination before formal adoption by the Board of Directors of a resolution acknowledging such termination.

ARTICLE V - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1 - General Purpose and Qualifications

The property, affairs, and business of the Corporation shall be managed by the Board of Directors. In no event shall any person sit on the Board of Directors if he shall be directly or indirectly interested in the outcome of any action or vote of the Board of Directors or the membership, unless that said interest shall be common to the other members of the Corporation. No Director shall vote on a question in which he has a direct or indirect personal or pecuniary interest not common to other members of the organization. Directors shall be members of the Corporation in current good standing.

Section 2 - Number

The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than ten (10) and no more than twenty-four (24) active Directors. In addition to the twenty-four (24) active Directors, the Immediate Past President shall serve as a voting member of the Board. The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, establish and define an Advisory Board. Advisory Directors may participate in Board meetings but may not vote. There may also be as many Honorary Directors as are named by the Board. Honorary Directors may participate in Board meetings but may not vote.

Section 3 - Term

Each Director may be elected to no more than two (2) consecutive three-year terms. Upon completion of two consecutive three year terms each Director shall vacate the Board for a period of at least one year. A Director having served two three year terms and having vacated the Board for one year may be reelected to the Board.

Section- 4 - Election

Directors to fill Board positions that are vacant due to expired terms shall be elected from the ballot offered by the Nominating Committee by the vote of a majority of the members present at each Annual Meeting of the membership, a quorum of the members being present. To provide staggered tri-annual terms no more than eight (8) Directors shall be elected at any Annual Meeting. Independent nominations may be made in accordance with Article IX of these bylaws.

Section 5 - Resignations

A Director may resign as such at any time by written notice to the Board to be effective on acceptance by the Board. Unexcused absence of a Director at four consecutive meetings of the Board during a calendar year shall be deemed to be notice of such Director's intention to resign. A Director whose resignation is the result of unexcused absences shall be promptly notified. However such Director may be reinstated by action of the Board, at its direction, at the meeting of the Board next following the meeting at which such Director's deemed resignation was accepted,

Section 6 - Removal of Director

Any Director may be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of the entire number of Directors in office at any meeting, when in their judgment the best interests of the Corporation shall be served thereby, provided that there shall have been included in the notice of such meeting, notice of the intention to remove such Director. However, such removal will be without prejudice to any contract rights of the Director or Officer removed.

Section 7 - Vacancies

The Board of Directors shall have the power to elect members of the LAKE FOREST FOUNDATION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION to fill vacancies with unexpired terms on the Board of Directors from a slate presented by the Nominating Committee. The appointment of such member shall be subject to confirmation by the members of the Corporation at the annual meeting next following the date of such appointment. Any Director, so appointed, shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor.

Section 8 - Meetings

The Board of Directors shall meet at least four (4) times a year at a time and place designated by the President or Vice President on written notice. This notice, stating the place, day, and hour of the meeting must be delivered by mail not less than five (5) nor more than forty (40) days before the date of the meeting, at the direction of the President or Vice President, by the Secretary. Such notice will be deemed

to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the director at his address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, with postage prepaid.

In addition to the four (4) regular meetings each year, special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by any of the following:

- The President
- A Vice President
- At the request of three (3) members of the Board.

A written notice, stating the place, day, and hour of the meeting must be delivered to all Directors by mail not less than five (5) nor more than forty (40) days before the date of the meeting, at the direction of the President, Vice President, or three (3) Directors, by the Secretary.

Attendance of a Director at any meeting of the Board of Directors will constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where such Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

One-third (1/3) of the whole Board of Directors will constitute a quorum. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present will be the act of the Board of Directors, unless a greater number is required under the provisions of the General-Not-For-Profit-Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, or any provision of the bylaws. Each Director shall be entitled to one vote.

Section 9 - Directoral Committees

The Board of Directors, by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office, may designate and appoint one or more committees, each of which shall consist of one (1) Director, as Chairman, and additional members as appropriate; which committees, to the extent provided in such resolution, in the Articles of Incorporation or these bylaws of the Corporation, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation. However, no such committee shall have the authority of the Board in reference to affecting any of the following:

1. Articles of Incorporation
2. Bylaws
3. Resolutions of the Board of Directors, which by their terms provide against such action by any committee
4. Holding of any corporation directorship, office, or committee membership
5. Plans of merger or consolidation of the Corporation
6. Transfer in any phase of substantially all the assets of the Corporation
7. Voluntary dissolution of the Corporation
8. Plan of distribution of assets of the Corporation.

The creation of any committee will not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual Director, of any responsibility imposed on such persons by law.

Section 10 - Waiver of Notice of Meetings

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the General-Not-For-Profit Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, or these Bylaws, a waiver of such notice in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to notice, whether before or after the time stated in such waiver, will be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

Section 11 - Action by Consent

Any action required by law or under the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation or these Bylaws, or any action which otherwise may be taken at a meeting of either the members or Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, is signed by all of the persons entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter of such consent. Such consent will have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote.

ARTICLE VI – IMDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND OTHERS

The Foundation shall indemnify its Directors, Officers, employees and agents to the full extent provided by the General Not for Profit Corporation Act of Illinois.

ARTICLE VII – LIMITED LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND OTHERS

Section 1 – Directors and Officers

No Director or Officer of the Foundation serving without compensation other than reimbursement for actual expenses, shall be liable, and no cause of action may be brought for damages resulting from the exercise of his or her judgment or discretion in connection with the duties or responsibilities of such Director or Officer, unless the act or omission involved willful or wanton conduct.

Section 2 – Others

No person who renders services to or for the Foundation, without compensation other than reimbursement for actual expenses, shall be liable, and no cause of action may be brought for damages resulting from his or her act or omission in rendering such services, unless the act or omission involved willful or wanton conduct.

Section 3 – Definitions

As used in this Article, “willful or wanton conduct” means a course of action which shows an actual or deliberate intention to cause harm or which, if not intentional, shows an utter indifference to or conscious disregard for the safety of others or their property.

ARTICLE VIII - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Section 1 - Composition

The Executive Committee of the LAKE FOREST FOUNDATION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION shall consist of the officers and the Immediate Past President.

Section 2 - Powers

The Executive Committee shall have and may exercise the powers, except those prohibited by the statutes, of the Board of Directors between meetings of the Board. The powers of the Executive Committee shall include the power to authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to all papers that may require it.

Section 3 - Organization and Meetings

The President of the Corporation shall act as Chairman of the Executive Committee and the Secretary of the Corporation shall act as Secretary of the Executive Committee. In the absence of the President, the Committee shall appoint a Vice President to serve as Chairman of the meeting, in the absence of the Secretary, the Committee shall appoint a Secretary of the meeting. The Executive Committee shall keep a record of its actions and proceedings and report thereon to the Directors at the next meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 4 - Meetings

Meetings may be called by the President or a Vice President. Reasonable notice of the time and place of all meetings of the Executive Committee shall be given to all members of the Committee in accordance with rules formulated by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall meet at least quarterly. Additional meetings can be called more frequently as necessary.

Section 5 - Quorum

A majority of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Section 6 - Resignations

Any member of the Executive Committee may resign at any time by giving written notice to the President or to the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the time received unless otherwise specified therein.

Section 7 - Removal

Any member of the Executive Committee may be removed at any time by resolution adopted by the majority of the Directors in the same manner as prescribed in Article V, Section 6 of these bylaws.

ARTICLE IX - OFFICERS

Section 1 - Titles, Qualifications, and Number

The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, two Vice Presidents, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. In any election of officers, the members may elect and appoint a single person to any two or more offices simultaneously, except the offices of President and Secretary must be held by separate individuals. The officers shall be members of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX - OFFICERS

Section 2 - Nomination, Election, and Term of Office

Each officer shall be elected by a majority of the members, a quorum being present, from a slate presented by the Nominating Committee at each annual meeting, to serve until his successor shall have been duly chosen and qualified or until his death, resignation, or removal. No officer shall be elected for more than two (2) successive terms of one (1) year each. The Board of Directors by a majority vote may nominate a current officer to a second one(1) year term if it so falls at the end of his second three(3) year term. Independent nominations may be made in accordance with Article IX of these bylaws.

Section 3 - Duties

The powers and duties of the officers shall be as follows:

1. President - The President shall preside at all meetings of the membership, Directors, and Executive Committee. He shall have general directive supervision over the other officers of the Corporation, subject, however, to the control of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee and will represent the corporation at public affairs and meetings. He shall be an ex-officio member of all committees, except the Nominating Committee.
2. Vice President - It shall be among the duties of the Vice Presidents that one shall chair the Membership Committee, and the other the Program Committee. In the event of a vacancy in the office of President or during his inability to act for any reason, the powers and duties of this office shall be exercised by one of the Vice Presidents who shall be designated by the Board of Directors
3. Secretary - The Secretary shall (1) keep the minutes of the meetings of the Directors and of the Executive Committee in appropriate not-for-profit corporation record books for that purpose, (2) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with these bylaws or as required by law; (3) be custodian of all records and of the seal of the Corporation and see that it is affixed to the documents the execution of which, on behalf of the Corporation, under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with these bylaws; (4) keep all records of attendance at meetings; (5) see that the books, reports, statements, certificates, and all other documents and records required by law are properly kept and filed; and, in general (6) perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the Directors or by the President.
4. Treasurer - The Treasurer shall (1) keep and maintain current and correct accounts of the Corporation funds and expenses, and render an itemized financial report of these transactions at each meeting of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, and membership, and at such other times as shall be requested by the Directors, (2) he shall deposit the funds of the Corporation in such banks or other depositories as shall be designated by the Directors; (3) he shall serve as Chairman of the Finance Committee, which shall propose a budget to be approved by the Board of Directors at a meeting preceding the Annual Meeting as presented to the membership at the Annual Meeting and in general (4) perform all of the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the Board or the Executive Committee or the President.

Section 4 - Vacancy in Office

In the event of a vacancy in any office, except that of the President, the Board of Directors shall, by majority vote, elect, from the Directors, a successor who shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor.

ARTICLE X - STANDING COMMITTEES AND OTHER COMMITTEES

Section I - Appointment

The President of the Corporation shall appoint such committees as are required under the bylaws or as the Boards of Directors deem advisable to aid or consult with him. The Chairmen of such committees shall be Directors; members of the committees shall be members of the Corporation.

Section 2 - Standing Committees

1. Nominating Committee - The President shall designate a Nominating Committee no later than January 1 following the Annual Meeting. The President shall appoint a Chairman of this committee, who may be either a member of the Board of Directors or the Immediate Past President. Members of the committee shall include two members from the Board of Directors, two members from the Advisory Board if such exists, two members from the general membership, and the Chairman. It will be the responsibility of the Nominating Committee to present its slate of nominations and any nominations by members in accordance with Article IX of these bylaws at the next Annual Meeting, and to advise the Board of Directors of its nominations to fill any vacancies, which may occur on the Board prior to said Annual Meeting. A vacancy in the Nominating Committee may be filled by the President of the Corporation for the unexpired term of a committee member unable to serve.
2. Finance - The committee shall be chaired by the Treasurer who shall represent the committee on the Board of Directors. This committee shall advise the Board on all matters relating to the financing of the Corporation's own administration and properties. It shall be the duty of this committee, under the direction of the Treasurer, to meet quarterly and to prepare a budget for the Corporation.
3. Membership -The committee shall be chaired by a Vice President. The duties of the Membership Committee shall be the maintenance of an accurate and up-to-date membership file and records. This committee shall advise the Board on all matters relating to the general membership of the Corporation.
- Program - The committee shall be chaired by a Vice President. The duties of the Program Committee shall be to plan and carry out program and events.
5. Communications – The Communications Committee will have the responsibility for all publicity and publications, such as the newsletter, press releases, any brochures or other publications and updating of the website.

ARTICLE XI - NOMINATIONS BY MEMBERS

Nominations for any office of the Corporation or Board may be made by a petition signed by not less than fifteen (15) members of the membership of the Corporation, provided that any such petition is sent to the Nominating Committee addressed to the Chairman thereof, not less than two (2) weeks in advance of the Annual Meeting at which the election is to be held. The Nominating Committee shall advise the members of the Corporation at said Annual Meeting of the names of candidates nominated pursuant to this section.

ARTICLE XII - FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of April of each year and end on the thirty-first of March of each year.

ARTICLE XIII - EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS

Except as otherwise provided by law, checks, drafts, promissory notes, orders for the payment of money, and other evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation in excess of \$250 will be signed by any two of the following; the President, Treasurer, Secretary, or Executive Director. Amounts less than \$250 need only the signature of one of the previously stated. No check may be paid to and signed by the same individual. Contracts, leases, or other instruments executed in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation will be signed by the Secretary and countersigned by the President, and will have attached copies of the resolutions of the Board of Directors certified by the Secretary authorizing their execution.

ARTICLE XIV - RECORDS

The Corporation will keep correct and complete books and records of account, and will also keep minutes of the proceedings of its members, Board of Directors, and Directorial Committees. The Corporation will keep at its registered office a record giving the names and addresses of its members entitled to vote.

ARTICLE XV - INSPECTION OF RECORDS

All books and records of the Corporation may be inspected by any member, or his agent or attorney, for any proper purpose at any reasonable time.

ARTICLE XVI - REMUNERATION

The Corporation will not have or issue shares of stock. No dividend will be paid, and no part of the income of the Corporation will be distributed to its members, Directors, or Officers.

ARTICLE XVII - LOANS

The Corporation will make no loans to any of its Directors or Officers, or to any of its key management, personnel, or members.

ARTICLE XVIII - AUDIT

The fiscal affairs of the Corporation for each accounting year shall be audited by a firm of certified public accountants.

ARTICLE XIX - SEAL

The seal of the Corporation shall consist of a flat-faced circular die with the following words cut or engraved around the perimeter, "Lake Forest Foundation for Historic Preservation, Lake Forest, Illinois," and with the words "Incorporated 1976" in the center thereof.

ARTICLE XX - AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

Following approval of the proposed amendment by a majority vote of the Directors then in office, these bylaws can be amended at a membership meeting by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of those present, or represented by proxy, provided that the amendment has been delivered in writing to each member entitled to vote, not less than ten (10) nor more than forty (40) days before the date of the meeting. The notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his address as it appears on the records of the Corporation with postage prepaid.

Any number of amendments may be submitted and voted on at any one meeting.

ARTICLE XXI - LIMITATIONS

No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article II hereof. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of

statements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the Corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (1) by a corporation exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law); or (2) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law).

ARTICLE XXII - DISSOLUTION

On dissolution of the Corporation, the Board of Directors shall, after paying or making provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all of the assets of the Corporation by paying them over to one or more organizations as shall at the time qualify as an exempt Organization or Organizations under the Internal Revenue Code of 1954.

ARTICLE XXIII - AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

The Articles of Incorporation may be amended in the following manner:

1. The Board of Directors shall adopt a resolution setting forth the proposed amendment and directing that it be submitted to a vote at a meeting of the membership. This may be a special or an Annual Meeting.
2. Written notice setting forth the proposed amendment or a summary of the changes to be effected thereby shall be delivered to each member entitled to vote at such meetings not less than ten (10) nor more than forty (40) days before the date of the membership meeting. The notice will be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at the address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, with postage prepaid.
3. The proposed amendment shall be adopted on receiving at least two-thirds (2/3) of the votes entitled to be cast by the members present or represented by proxy at such meeting.

Any number of amendments may be submitted and voted on at any one meeting.

Amended:

April 29, 1979; April 26, 1961; April 14, 1992; May 14, 1984; April 21, 1985; April 17, 1988; May 23, 1993; May 19, 1996; April 27, 1997; April 29, 2001; April 29, 2007; May 18, 2008, May 3, 2009